
 
 
Committee: 
 

LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 25 NOVEMBER 2010 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 2.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the meeting held on 1 September 2010 (previously circulated).  
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
5. Licensing Act 2003 - Policy Review (Pages 1 - 40) 
 
 Report of the Licensing Manager  
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Joyce Taylor (Chairman), Bob Roe (Vice-Chairman), Anne Chapman, 

Chris Coates, Jane Fletcher, John Harrison, Helen Helme, Janie Kirkman, Ian McCulloch, 
Peter Robinson, Sylvia Rogerson, Roger Sherlock, Malcolm Thomas, Tony Wade and 
Paul Woodruff 
 

(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services, telephone (01524) 582068, or email 
jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Changes to Membership or Apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone (01524) 582170, or email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday, 17 November 2010.   

 



LICENSING ACT COMMITTEE  
  
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Policy Review 

 
25th November 2010 

 
Report of the Licensing Manager  

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To enable Members to consider the proposed changes to the Statement of Licensing 
Policy following the consultation process. 
 
This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
Members are requested to consider the attached revised draft Statement of 
Licensing Policy, and to determine whether they wish to make any further 
amendments prior to referral to Council for approval on the 15th December 
2010. 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Statement of Licensing Policy is a requirement of Section 5 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 and has been prepared in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act and Guidance issued by Secretary of State for Culture Media and 
Sport under Section 182 of the Act (currently dated 20th March 2010).  The 
Licensing Authority is bound by the Act, any regulations made under it, and 
the Section 182 Guidance. 

 
1.2 The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to update its Statement of 

Licensing Policy every 3 years.  The current policy came into force in January 
2008. A revised Draft Statement of Licensing Policy and a summary of the 
proposed changes has been prepared by the licensing manager and was 
published for consultation with stakeholders and interested parties. 

 
1.3 For the purpose of reviewing the Licensing Policy, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Act, Lancaster City Council consulted with: 
 

• The Police 
• The Fire Authority 
• Representatives of existing holders of premises and personal licences 
• Representatives of existing holders of club premises certificates 
• Local businesses and their representatives 

Agenda Item 5 Page 1



• Local residents and their representatives 
 
1.4 Consultation Process 
 
 Letters were sent to all licence holders, and all other stakeholders, requesting 

responses by 2nd November 2010.  
 
 Copies of the Draft revised policy were placed on the Lancaster City Council 

website on the licensing page, as well as in the Town Halls in Morecambe and 
Lancaster 

 
 A press release has been published in the Lancaster Guardian.   
 
2.0 Consultation Responses 
 
 There were three responses received to the consultation, only one of which 

was relevant.  However all three responses have been attached to this report 
at appendix 1 for members’ perusal. 

 
2.1 The relevant representation was received from Lancashire District Alcohol 

Harm Reduction Partnership, and a summary of proposed changes after 
taking into account their representation is attached at appendix 2 to this report 
along with a copy of the proposed revised Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
3.0 Conclusion 
 
3.1 The Licensing Authority is required by the Act to revise its Statement of 

Licensing Policy every 3 years, and to consult with stakeholders, before 
publishing and implementing the updated Policy.   

 
3.2 The Policy will be considered by full Council on 15th December 2010, for 

implementation in January 2011, in order to satisfy the statutory time frames.  
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and 
Rural Proofing) 
 
None. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The report has been prepared on behalf of the Head of Governance.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Ms W Peck 
Telephone:  01524 582317 
E-mail: wpeck@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: WP 

 
 

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



L
ic
en
si
n
g
 A
ct
 2
00
3 
- 
P
o
lic
y 
R
ev
ie
w
 

 S
u
m
m
ar
y 
o
f 
P
ro
p
o
se
d
 C
h
an
g
es
 F
o
llo
w
in
g
 C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n
 

 N
o
ve
m
b
er
 2
01
0 

 P
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
T

itl
e/

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
P

ro
po

se
d 

am
en

dm
en

t 
R

ea
so

n 

5.
3 

P
ub

lic
is

in
g 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
N

o 
C

ha
ng

e 
 

R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 T
he

 A
ct

 d
ef

in
es

 w
ho

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
su

lte
d.

  T
hi

s 
au

th
or

ity
 

pu
bl

is
he

s 
al

l a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 o
n 

ou
r 

w
eb

si
te

, t
hi

s 
ac

tio
n 

is
 

al
re

ad
y 

ov
er

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 
12

.6
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n.
 

D
el

et
e 

th
e 

w
or

di
ng

:-
 

 In
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l A

re
a 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 b

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
bo

dy
 to

 w
hi

ch
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

op
ie

d.
 

  In
se

rt
 th

e 
w

or
di

ng
:-

 
 In

 m
at

te
rs

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
fr

om
 h

ar
m

, 
th

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

ga
rd

s 
th

e 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
 a

s 
th

e 
‘re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
au

th
or

ity
’ 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
te

rm
s 

of
 S

ec
tio

n 
13

 (
4)

.f 
of

 th
e 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ct
. 

    

 R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

co
rr

ec
t c

hi
ld

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

bo
dy

 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
. 

12
.1

0 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

In
se

rt
:-

   
 T

he
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

ns
id

er
s 

pr
ev

en
tin

g 
ch

ild
re

n 
fr

om
 o

bt
ai

ni
ng

 a
lc

oh
ol

 f
ro

m
 

lic
en

se
d 

pr
em

is
es

 
to

 
be

 
of

 
gr

ea
t 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 

in
 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
th

em
 

fr
om

 
ha

rm
. 

A
pp

lic
an

ts
 

m
us

t, 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 
be

 
ab

le
 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
th

at
 

th
ey

 
ha

ve
 

in
 

pl
ac

e,
 

R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 

Page 10



sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
to

 
pr

ev
en

t 
sa

le
s 

of
 

al
co

ho
l 

to
 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 o

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

of
-o

f-
ag

e 
sc

he
m

e.
 T

he
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
an

y 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 

• 
P

as
sp

or
t. 

• 
P

ho
to

 C
ar

d 
dr

iv
in

g 
lic

en
ce

 is
su

ed
 in

 th
e 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
U

ni
on

 
• 

P
ro

of
 o

f A
ge

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 S

ch
em

e 
C

ar
d 

(P
A

S
S

) 
• 

‘N
ew

 ty
pe

’ d
riv

in
g 

lic
en

ce
s 

w
ith

 p
ho

to
gr

ap
hs

. 
• 

O
ffi

ci
al

 I
D

 c
ar

d 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
M

 F
or

ce
s 

or
 b

y 
a 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
U

ni
on

 c
ou

nt
ry

 
be

ar
in

g 
a 

ph
ot

o 
an

d 
da

te
 o

f b
irt

h 
of

 h
ol

de
r 

 S
ta

ff 
sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oo
f 

of
 a

ge
 s

ch
em

e 
to

 
be

 a
pp

lie
d 

up
on

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 a
nd

 r
ec

or
ds

 e
vi

de
nc

in
g 

th
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 k

ep
t. 

   

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

 

13
.4

 
P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 
P

ub
lic

 N
ui

sa
nc

e 
In

se
rt

:-
 

 W
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
 li

ce
nc

e 
ho

ld
er

s 
sh

ou
ld

 tr
y 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 s

m
ok

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 d

oo
rs

 th
at

 a
re

 o
pe

n 
fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 e
gr

es
s.

 
 (M

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
s 

H
ea

lth
 is

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

e)
 

R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip

. 
 T

o 
pr

ev
en

t p
eo

pl
e 

pa
ss

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
cl

ou
d 

of
 s

ec
on

d 
ha

nd
 s

m
ok

e 
14

.4
 

T
he

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

In
se

rt
ed

 th
e 

w
or

ds
 :-

 
  G

la
ss

es
 a

nd
 g

la
ss

 b
ot

tle
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

an
ge

ro
us

 w
ea

po
ns

. 
A

s 
su

ch
 t

he
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

po
ly

ca
rb

on
at

e 
gl

as
se

s,
 in

 p
re

m
is

es
. 

W
he

re
 a

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 is
su

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 h

i-l
ig

ht
ed

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 if

 t
he

 p
re

m
is

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

br
ou

gh
t 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
a 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

au
th

or
ity

, a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

to
 th

is
 e

ffe
ct

 m
ay

 b
e 

im
po

se
d.

 
 It

 i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t 
th

at
 t

ha
t 

gl
as

se
s 

an
d 

bo
ttl

es
 a

re
 f

re
qu

en
tly

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
em

pt
y 

co
nt

ai
ne

rs
 d

o 
no

t 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

e 
in

 o
r 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 li

ce
ns

ed
 p

re
m

is
es

. 
S

ta
ff 

al
so

 
m

us
t 

pr
ev

en
t 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f 

bo
ttl

es
 o

r 
gl

as
se

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 c

ur
til

ag
e 

an
d 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 

lic
en

se
d 

pr
em

is
es

, t
o 

pr
ev

en
t t

he
m

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d 

to
 c

au
se

 h
ar

m
. 

   

 R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l  

H
ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 T
he

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r.
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f P
re

m
is

e 
Li

ce
nc

es
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

ec
tio

n 
 T

he
 L

ic
en

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
su

pp
or

ts
 th

e 
‘R

ed
 a

nd
 Y

el
lo

w
 c

ar
d 

sc
he

m
e’

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
H

om
e 

R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

Page 11



O
ffi

ce
 a

nd
 D

C
M

S
 (

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 M

ed
ia

 a
nd

 S
po

rt
) 

ha
ve

 p
ro

m
ot

ed
. 

T
hi

s 
sc

he
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

pr
ob

le
m

 
pr

em
is

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 

pr
oc

es
s,

 
su

gg
es

ts
 t

ha
t 

up
on

 a
 f

irs
t 

re
vi

ew
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 m
ea

su
re

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 a
nd

 if
 a

 s
ec

on
d 

re
vi

ew
 is

 r
ec

ei
ve

d,
 r

ev
oc

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 li
ce

nc
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

 
ea

ch
 

ca
se

 
is

 
lo

ok
ed

 
at

 
on

 
its

 
ow

n 
m

er
its

 
w

he
n 

br
ou

gh
t 

be
fo

re
 

th
e 

lic
en

si
ng

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

.  
 

  A
ny

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

a 
lic

en
ce

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

A
ct

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

r 
on

e 
of

 
its

 s
ub

-c
om

m
itt

ee
s.

 T
he

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 t

he
 f

ul
l 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ow

er
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 i
t 

w
he

n 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
a 

pr
em

is
e 

lic
en

ce
 b

ec
om

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
nd

 w
hi

ls
t 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
R

ed
/y

el
lo

w
 c

ar
d 

sc
he

m
e,

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
re

vo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

 li
ce

nc
e,

 e
ve

n 
in

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
in

st
an

ce
, 

if 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
cr

im
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rm

in
ed

.  
  T

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

, h
ow

ev
er

, b
e 

m
in

df
ul

 o
f t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
be

in
g 

us
ed

 a
s 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 b

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
nd

 in
te

re
st

ed
 p

ar
tie

s 
to

 r
e-

ru
n 

ea
rli

er
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 w

ith
ou

t d
ue

 c
au

se
. 

 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
. 

 
C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
Im

pa
ct

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 S
ec

tio
n 

 In
 

so
m

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 
th

e 
A

ct
 

al
lo

w
s 

lic
en

si
ng

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
to

 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
‘c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 p
ol

ic
y’

 c
ov

er
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ta

rg
et

 a
re

as
. 

“C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
” 

in
 t

hi
s 

co
nt

ex
t 

is
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

 
th

at
 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
lic

en
se

d 
pr

em
is

es
 

co
nc

en
tr

at
ed

 i
n 

on
e 

ar
ea

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
on

 t
he

 l
ic

en
si

ng
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
W

hi
ls

t 
th

is
 i

s 
a 

pr
op

er
 m

at
te

r 
fo

r 
a 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
its

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
po

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t, 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

gu
id

an
ce

, a
dv

is
es

 th
at

 th
is

 s
itu

at
io

n 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 o
cc

ur
 in

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

es
 “

w
he

re
 t

he
 n

um
be

r,
 t

yp
e 

an
d 

de
ns

ity
 o

f 
pr

em
is

es
 s

el
lin

g 
al

co
ho

l 
fo

r 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
on

 t
he

 p
re

m
is

es
 a

re
 u

nu
su

al
 a

nd
 s

er
io

us
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

of
 

nu
is

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
is

or
de

r 
m

ay
 b

e 
ar

is
in

g 
or

 h
av

e 
be

gu
n 

to
 a

ris
e 

ou
ts

id
e 

or
 s

om
e 

di
st

an
ce

 fr
om

 li
ce

ns
ed

 p
re

m
is

es
”.

 
  T

he
 n

ig
ht

 ti
m

e 
le

is
ur

e 
sc

en
e 

in
 L

an
ca

st
er

 is
 n

ot
 e

nt
ire

ly
 fr

ee
 o

f d
is

or
de

r 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

bu
t 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 t

he
 s

m
al

l 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
w

he
re

 t
he

 s
itu

at
io

n 
is

 
se

rio
us

ly
 o

ut
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

, i
t i

s 
fo

rt
un

at
e.

 T
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 n

ev
er

th
el

es
s,

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

at
 

a 
co

nc
en

tr
at

io
n 

of
 li

ce
ns

ed
 p

re
m

is
es

 in
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 a

re
a 

ca
n 

re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 t
hr

ou
gh

 o
r 

co
ng

re
ga

tin
g 

in
 s

tr
ee

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ni

gh
t 

w
ith

 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
an

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 c
rim

e,
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r,

 n
oi

se
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 r
es

id
en

ts
, t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 li

tte
rin

g 
or

 fo
ul

in
g.

 In
 

su
ch

 c
as

es
 t

he
 a

m
en

ity
 o

f 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 u

nd
er

 s
ev

er
e 

pr
es

su
re

 b
ut

 
th

is
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 a
ny

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

re
m

is
es

. 

R
ep
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
ec
ei
ve
d
 

fr
o
m
 L
an
ca
st
er
 D
is
tr
ic
t 

A
lc
o
h
o
l H

ar
m
 R
ed
u
ct
io
n
 

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 

Page 12



  In
 a

ny
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 ‘c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 p
ol

ic
y’

, t
he

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
w

ill
 r

el
y 

on
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
di

so
rd

er
 o

r 
nu

is
an

ce
 a

re
 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
at

 a
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l l

ev
el

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
es

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

, w
er

e 
it 

no
t f

or
 th

e 
lic

en
se

d 
pr

em
is

es
 s

el
lin

g 
al

co
ho

l f
or

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
on

 th
e 

pr
em

is
es

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. I

f t
hi

s 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 th
en

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

 A
ny

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
a 

po
lic

y 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

lo
ok

 a
t 

th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 t
o 

su
ch

 a
 p

ol
ic

y,
 t

o 
se

e 
if 

th
ey

 m
ig

ht
 e

ith
er

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
he

 s
am

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

or
 b

e 
a 

co
m

pl
em

en
t t

o 
su

ch
 a

 p
ol

ic
y.

 
  O

nl
y 

if 
it 

is
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

w
ith

 h
ar

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

a 
‘c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 p
ol

ic
y’

 i
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d 
th

at
 n

o 
le

ss
er

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

th
e 

de
si

re
d 

ef
fe

ct
, w

ill
 s

uc
h 

a 
po

lic
y 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

. 
  T

hi
s 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 
ha

vi
ng

 
re

ga
rd

 
to

 
th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 

an
d 

to
 

th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 c
on

si
de

rs
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

di
st

ric
t 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

ca
us

in
g 

a 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

an
y 

of
 th

e 
lic

en
si

ng
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
  H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
lic

en
se

d 
pr

em
is

es
 in

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
re

a 
m

ay
, 

at
 a

 
fu

tu
re

 
tim

e,
 

on
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
fr

om
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
or

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
or

 
a 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

au
th

or
ity

, 
tr

ig
ge

r 
th

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 w

he
th

er
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 li
ce

nc
es

 o
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

va
ria

tio
ns

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

lic
en

ce
s 

to
 i

nc
re

as
e 

su
ch

 a
sp

ec
ts

 a
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
r 

op
er

at
in

g 
ho

ur
s,

 w
ou

ld
 le

ad
 t

o 
an

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
sa

tu
ra

tio
n 

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
. 

T
he

 o
nu

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
on

 t
he

 
ob

je
ct

or
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
lic

en
ce

s 
or

 t
he

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
lic

en
ce

s 
w

ill
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 c
la

im
ed

. 
 If 

su
ch

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

er
e 

to
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d,
 i

t 
w

ou
ld

 f
or

m
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
lic

en
si

ng
 

po
lic

y.
 

If 
re

le
va

nt
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 

w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

fr
om

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 
or

 
in

te
re

st
ed

 
pa

rt
ie

s 
co

nc
er

ni
ng

 
a 

ne
w

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 th

e 
sp

ec
ia

l s
at

ur
at

io
n 

po
lic

y,
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
or

m
al

ly
 b

e 
a 

re
fu

sa
l. 

  T
he

 L
ic

en
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

re
co

gn
is

es
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
th

at
 s

uc
h 

a 
po

lic
y 

co
ul

d 
no

t 
be

 
ab

so
lu

te
 a

nd
 it

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
ea

ch
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
pr

op
er

ly
 o

n 
its

 m
er

it.
 F

or
 

lic
en

ce
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 a
dd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
of

 s
at

ur
at

io
n,

 t
he

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 g
en

er
al

ly
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. 

Page 13



  W
he

re
 t

he
re

 i
s 

no
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 p
ol

ic
y,

 t
he

re
 i

s 
no

 p
re

su
m

pt
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
gr

an
t 

of
 n

ew
 li

ce
nc

es
. 

N
ev

er
th

el
es

s,
 t

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

of
 o

th
er

 li
ce

ns
ed

 p
re

m
is

es
 in

 t
he

 
ar

ea
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

em
is

es
 f

or
 w

hi
ch

 a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
an

d 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

re
m

is
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 d

ue
 t

o 
op

en
 i

n 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
 a

re
 m

at
te

rs
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ra

is
ed

 b
y 

th
os

e 
m

ak
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 if
 t

ho
se

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 
ar

e 
pe

rt
in

en
t t

o 
th

e 
lic

en
si

ng
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, i
t w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
be

ar
in

g 
on

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 
  

 

Page 14



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003  

 
 

STATEMENT OF    
 

 LICENSING POLICY 
 
 
 

 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 2011 – 2014 
 
 
 

Licensing Manager  
Lancaster City Council  

Palatine Hall 
Dalton Square  

Lancaster LA1 1PW 
 

Tel 01524 582317 
Email: licensing@lancaster.gov.uk   

 
 

Further copies may be obtained from the above address or from the Council’s website:- 
www.lancaster.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LANCASTER 
 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY  
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This document sets out the revised Licensing Policy of the Lancaster City Council, which 

is the Licensing Authority, under the Act.   
 
1.2 Licensing is about regulating the carrying on of licensable activities on licensed 

premises, by qualifying clubs, and at temporary events within the terms of the Act.  
Conditions attached to various authorisations will focus on matters which are within the 
control of individual licensees and others in possession of relevant authorisations.  
Accordingly, these matters will centre on the premises being used for licensable 
activities and the vicinity of those premises.   

 
1.3 This statement of licensing policy is a requirement of Section 5 of the Licensing 

Act 2003 (the Act) and has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act and the Guidance issued by Secretary of State for Culture Media and Sport 
under Section 182 of the Act (currently dated 20thMarch 2010). The Licensing 
Authority is, therefore, bound by the Act, any regulations made under it and the 
Section 182 guidance. 

 
1.4 For the purpose of reviewing its Licensing Policy, in accordance with the requirements 

the Act, the Licensing Authority has consulted with: 
 

• The Police 
• The Fire Authority 
• Representatives of existing holders of premises licences and personal licences 
• Representatives of  existing holders of club premises certificates   
• Local businesses and their representatives 
• Local residents and their representatives 

 
1.5 The Licensing Authority is grateful for the responses received, and has given proper 

weight to the views expressed by those consultees. 
 
1.6 The Licensing Authority will consider all applications under the Licensing Act 2003 in 

accordance with the Act, Government Guidance, and in the light of this policy.  It will 
expect applicants to comply with the procedural requirements of the Act and Regulations 
thereunder, and would encourage applicants to make themselves aware of the contents 
of this Policy, and to discuss their applications in advance with the Licensing Authority’s 
administrative staff, and with relevant responsible authorities (see below) and interested 
parties.  

 

Page 16



 

 

 
 
 

 

2.  Scope of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
2.1 Subject to exemptions set out in the Act, the Act and this Policy apply to applications for: 
 

• Retail sale of alcohol 
• Supply of alcohol to club members 
• Provision of ‘regulated entertainment’ – to the public, to club members or with a view 

to profit 
• The performance of a play 
• Exhibition of a film 
• An indoor sporting event 
• Boxing or wrestling entertainment (indoor or outdoor) 
• A performance of live music 
• Any playing of recorded music 
• A performance of dance 
• Provision of facilities for making music 
• Provision of facilities for dancing 

where the entertainment takes place in the presence of an audience and is provided 
for the purpose of entertaining the audience 

• The supply of hot food and/or drink from any premises between 11.00 p.m. and 5.00 
a.m. 

 
The policy covers new applications, transfers, variations of licences and certificates and 
provisional statements as well as renewals of personal licences. It also includes the 
review of licences and certificates. 
 
 
3. The Area of the Lancaster City Council 
 
3.1 The Lancaster City Council covers the historic, university city of Lancaster, the coastal 

resort of Morecambe, and the town of Carnforth and the surrounding rural areas.  The 
premises within the area which will require to be licensed under the new legislation are 
many and varied, catering for diverse tastes and consumer demands. 

 
3.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that the entertainment, hospitality and leisure 

industry within its area is a major contributor to the economy of the area.  It attracts 
tourists and visitors, makes for vibrant towns and communities, and is a major employer. 

 
3.3 However, the area has a substantial residential population, whose amenity the Licensing 

Authority has a duty to protect.  In particular, there are many residential properties within 
the town centres of Lancaster, Morecambe and Carnforth and also in the rural areas.  
Occupiers of commercial premises also have a legitimate expectation of an environment 
that is attractive and sustainable for their businesses. 

 
3.4 It is necessary to balance all these competing interests, and especially at night time. 
 
3.5 In addition, the Licensing Authority will have regard to wider considerations affecting the 

amenity of any area.  These include littering and fouling, noise and street crime, and the 
capacity of the infrastructure and resources to cope with the influx of visitors, particularly 
at night. 

 
3.6 This policy sets out the general approach that the Licensing Authority will take in 

considering licence applications, both for new licences and for variations of existing 
licences.  However, it is important to recognise that all applications will be considered on 

Page 17



 

 

 
 
 

 

their individual merits.  It is also important to recognise that if no relevant representations 
are received from responsible authorities or interested parties, the application must and 
will be granted in the terms sought and no additional conditions imposed. 

 
3.7 The purpose of the policy is to assist officers and members in reaching a decision on a 

particular application, setting out those matters that will normally be taken into account.  
In addition, the policy seeks to provide clarity for applicants, residents and other 
occupiers of property and investors, enabling them to make plans to move to, remain or 
invest in the area with some measure of certainty. 

 
3.8  The major aim of the Licensing Authority is to promote the City, Coast and Countryside 

 within its boundary in a safe environment. 
 
4. Responsible Authorities and Interested Parties 
 
4.1 The Act defines “responsible authorities”, for the purposes of the Act.   
 
4.2 For the purposes of the area of the Lancaster City Council, these are: 
 
 Police – The Licensing Officer, Lancashire Constabulary, Divisional Headquarters, 
 Thurnham Street, Lancaster LA1 1YB 
 
 Fire Authority – Fire Safety Department, Lancaster Fire Station, Cable Street, Lancaster 
 LA1 1HH 
 
 Health and Safety at Work – Head of Health and Strategic Housing, Town Hall, 
 Morecambe LA4 5AF 
 
 Environmental Pollution – Head of Health and Strategic Housing, Town Hall, Morecambe 
 LA4 5AF 
  

Regeneration and Policy – The Head of Regeneration and Policy Services, Palatine Hall, 
Dalton  Square, Lancaster LA1 1PW 

 
 Protection of Children from Harm - Area Child Protection Committee, Quality and Review 
 Manager, Social Services Directorate, PO Box 162 East Cliff County Offices, Preston 
 PR1 3EA 
 
 Trading Standards – Metrology Section, 58-60 Guildhall Street, Preston, PR1 3NU 
 
For information about the responsible authority in respect of the licensing of a vessel, applicants 
should seek further advice from the Licensing Authority.  
 
4.3 Interested parties are persons living or involved in a business in the vicinity of the 

premises, or bodies representing such persons. 
 
4.4 S33 of the Policing and crime Act 2009 has amended the definition of an interested party 

to include a member of the relevant Licensing Authority.  As such, a Councillor of 
Lancaster City Council may now make representations as an interested party.  This 
means that they could call for a review of a premise licence or continue to act in a 
representative capacity on behalf of ward residents for any new applications, or 
applications to vary. 

 
 
 

Page 18



 

 

 
 
 

 

5.0  APPLICATIONS FOR A PREMISES LICENCES AND CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATES 
 
5.1 The Licensing Authority requires that all applications for the grant, variation or transfer of 

any licence, permit or certificate detailed in the Act are made in accordance with the 
statutory requirements and any guidance issued from time to time by the Council.  In 
particular, all such applications must be accompanied by the appropriate fee, where 
applicable, for them to be deemed to be properly made. Where such applications are 
statutorily required to be advertised, or notified to other specified persons, applicants are 
advised to confirm that such advertising or notification has been properly made. 
Applicants should be aware that failure to make an application in accordance with the 
statutory requirements will result in the application being returned and that the period for 
determination will not commence until a valid application has been submitted. 
Applications will not, however, be returned because of small administrative errors which 
can be easily corrected 

 
5.2 It is important to ensure that the application accurately reflects the intended operation of 

the premises.  The application must be accompanied by a plan of the premises which 
shows certain information as required by the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences 
and Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005.  This includes marking the areas of 
the premises which are proposed to be used for each licensable activity.  It is important 
to note that, although consumption of alcohol is not itself a licensable activity, if the plan 
does not show outside areas (e.g. beer gardens or similar) then any premises licence 
which authorises the sale of alcohol ‘for consumption ON the premises’ only, as opposed 
to ‘on and off the premises’ would not authorise the use of such areas.  In other words, 
the plan which is submitted as part of the application defines the ‘premises’ for the 
purpose of the licence. 

 
5.3 As indicated above, the Act requires licence applicants to publicise their applications. 

This is to enable interested parties and responsible authorities to make a representation 
if they wish. Our experience as a Licensing Authority is that statutory publicity may not 
always bring applications to the attention of all parties. Therefore, in addition to putting 
applications on our web site, we will notify all members of the Council of applications for 
premises licences, club premises certificates and variations received on a weekly basis.  

 
5.4 The Licensing Authority will offer guidance as appropriate to applicants on the 

completion of necessary documentation. It will issue and make readily available 
guidance notes on the procedures it requires for making applications for licences and will 
from time to time review such guidance. 

 
6.0  APPLICATIONS MADE BY THE LOCAL AUTHORITY 
 
6.1 The Council has sought premises licences for public spaces in the community in its own 

name and will continue to do so. This could include, for example, open spaces, town 
centre squares, community halls and similar public spaces. With regard to those places, 
performers and entertainers will not need to obtain a licence or give a temporary event 
notice themselves in order to perform. Instead they would simply require permission 
from the Council as the premises licence holder.  

 
6.2 When one part of the Council seeks a premises licence from the Licensing Authority, the 

Licensing officers will consider the matter from an entirely neutral standpoint. If relevant 
representations are made, for example, by local residents or the police, they will be 
considered fairly. Those making representations genuinely aggrieved by a positive 
decision in favour of a local authority application by the Licensing Authority will generally 
be entitled to appeal to the magistrates’ court and thereby receive an independent 
review of any decision made. 

Page 19



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
7.0  VARIATIONS 
 
7.1 Where a premises licence holder wishes to make changes to their licence or to their 

premises, the Act allows, in most cases, for an application to vary the licence to be made 
rather than requiring an application for a new premises licence. The Licensing Authority 
considers that, in general, any changes to the licence which may impact on one or more 
of the licensing objectives requires an application under section 34 of the Act. 

 
7.2 The Act does, however, allow for a simplified procedure for varying a licence    where the 

changes do not have a detrimental effect on the licensing objectives. 
            These are: 
 

• Changes to the name or address of anyone mentioned on the licence 
• Variations to specify a new individual as the designated premises supervisor  
• To disapply the mandatory condition requiring the sale of alcohol to be carried out 

under the authority of a personal licence holder and the need to have a designated 
premises supervisor in community premises. 

• Minor variations which do not impact on the licensing objectives 
 

7.3 Minor variations can include the following: 
 

• Minor changes to the structure or layout of a premises 
• Small adjustments to the licensing hours 
• The removal of out of date irrelevant or unenforceable conditions 
• Adding certain licensable activities including live music 

 
7.4 Changes to the structure of the premises will not fall within the definition of a minor 

variation if they have an adverse impact on the licensing objectives. For example: 
 

• If it increases the capacity for drinking on the premises; 
• Affects access between the public part of the premises and the rest of the premises 

or the street or public way e.g. block emergency exits or routes to emergency exits; 
• Impedes the effective operation of a noise reduction measure such as an acoustic 

lobby 
 
7.5 The following alterations to licensing hours are excluded from the minor variation 

procedures: 
 

• Extending licensing hours for the sale of alcohol for consumption on or off the 
premises between the hours of 23.00 and 07.00; or 

• To increase the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold or 
supplied for consumption off or on the premises. 

 
7.6 Application to alter the times of other licensable activities under the minor variation 

procedure will be considered on a case by case basis but the following will be some of 
the matters considered: 

 
• The nature of the licensable activity; 
• The extent of the additional hours sought and whether it will involve later opening or 

opening between 23.00 and 07.00; 
• Proximity of the premises to residential areas; 

Page 20



 

 

 
 
 

 

• Any licence conditions in already place to mitigate the impact of the activity and any 
additional conditions volunteered by the applicant; 

• Arrangements for dispersal, i.e. when people leave the premises is there potential for 
noise and disturbance near the venue? Is the only means of dispersal a single route 
through residential areas? 

• Whether the proposed extension applies only at weekends; 
• Whether there will be any new admittances during the extended period; 
• The track record of the premises; 
• Whether the premises is already open during the extended period for other 

licensable activities; 
• Proximity and density of public houses, nightclubs, etc. if customers from these 

premises are likely to be attracted to the proposed licensable activities in large 
numbers. For example, people visiting a takeaway after leaving a public house 

 
7.7 Applicants for minor variations may volunteer conditions to remove the risk of an 

adverse impact on the licensing objectives either as a result of their own risk 
assessments or after informal discussions with the responsible authorities. The 
Licensing Authority cannot, however, impose their own conditions during a minor 
variation procedure.  

 
7.8 Where the Licensing Authority believes that a proposed minor variation will have an 

adverse effect on the licensing objectives the application will be refused. Any refusal of a 
minor variation application does not prevent an application for a full variation under 
section 34 of the Act being made. 

 
8.0  ADULT ENTERTAINMENT 
 
8.1 Following the introduction of the Police and Crime Act 2009, schedule 3 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 has been amended to incorporate 
Sexual Entertainment Venues and this council will be considering whether to adopt this 
legislation on the 15th September. 

 
8.2 Premises offering lap dancing or any live performance or display of nudity on more than 

11 occasions within a 12 month period, in addition to any relevant entertainment, will be 
required to obtain a Sex Establishment Licence under Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (if adopted) from the Authority 
authorising such activity. Applications for such premises will be considered on their 
individual merits. 

 
8.3 It is the view of the Licensing Authority that children should not be exposed to 

entertainments of a sexual nature or to strong language at a too early an age. 
Conditions may be imposed, if representations are received, aimed at preventing such 
exposure either intentionally or accidentally. In some premises entertainment of an adult 
nature may be occasional or restricted to certain times of the day. In these cases, any 
restrictive conditions to protect children will apply only at these times. When submitting 
an application, if no reference is made to the provision of adult entertainment or services 
within an operating schedule at “Box N”, then the Authority will interpret this to mean that 
such entertainment will not be provided and a condition to this effect will be applied to 
the licence.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

 

 
 
 

 

9.0  THE OPERATING SCHEDULE & CONDITIONS 
 
9.1 Part of the application form requires that an ‘operating schedule’ is submitted for all 

applications and variation applications. The operating schedule which must be submitted 
in a prescribed form, should be completed for all relevant applications. Where the 
application is for a variation to an existing licence, the operating schedule should detail 
any additional steps required in relation to that variation. It should outline how the 
premises will be operated, and the arrangements for promoting the four licensing 
objectives 

 
9.2 The operating schedule must include all information necessary to enable the responsible 

authorities or interested parties to assess whether the steps outlined for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives are satisfactory. This will generally mean that applicants will 
need to complete their own detailed risk assessments on their businesses. Where the 
operating schedule does not provide enough details, there is an increased likelihood that 
representations will be made. Where these representations are relevant to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives, a hearing will follow, unless all parties agree that this is 
unnecessary. 

 
9.3 The Department of Culture Media and Sport (DCMS) have produced a pool of model 

conditions that may be applied.  Where any control measure is not relevant in respect of 
particular premises or activities, the Licensing Authority will not expect that measure to 
be mentioned in the operating schedule. Some measures will clearly not all be relevant 
in every case, and are not to be treated as absolute requirements and will not be used 
by the Licensing Authority to create standard conditions.  Indeed, it is possible that, in 
respect of some premises no measures will be needed to promote one or more of the 
licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately dealt with by other 
existing legislation.   

 
9.4 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that where the responsible authorities and 

interested parties do not raise any representations about an application, it is the duty of 
the Licensing Authority to grant the application subject only to conditions that are 
consistent with the operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed by the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 
9.3 Applicants should have regard to this licensing policy when preparing their operating 

schedules so that they are aware of the expectations of the Licensing Authority and of 
the other responsible authorities. Specific requirements to be met are detailed in this 
policy document. Other specific requirements are detailed in relevant legislation and in 
guidance documents. 

 
 
9.4 In order to minimise problems and the necessity for hearings, applicants should consult 

with responsible authorities when operating schedules are being prepared. This would 
allow for proper liaison before representations prove necessary. 

 
9.5 In the context of the above, the Licensing Authority will, as far as it is possible to do so, 

avoid imposing disproportionate and over-burdensome conditions on premises unless it 
is considered necessary to do so.  Conditions will be tailored to the individual style and 
characteristics of the premises and events concerned.  The Licensing Authority does not 
propose to implement standard conditions of licence as a matter of course, but may 
draw upon the pool of model conditions issued by the DCMS, a copy of which will be 
available to applicants from the Licensing Office. The Licensing Authority is aware that 
the Lancashire Constabulary have produced an additional pool of licence conditions 
which they may request the Licensing Authority to use in appropriate circumstances.  

Page 22



 

 

 
 
 

 

These are available from the Lancashire Constabulary. However, the Licensing Authority 
emphasises that it will only attach conditions as appropriate given the circumstances of 
each individual case and to achieve the licensing objectives.  References to the DCMS 
and Lancashire Constabulary pools of conditions are included for the information and 
assistance of  applicants, and the inclusion of a condition in either “pool” does not imply 
that the Licensing Authority will necessarily consider it appropriate to impose.  

 
 
9.6 Applicants may include any of the conditions from the “pools” in their operating 

schedules. 
 
9.7 Conditions not listed in either “pool” may be specifically tailored by the Council and 

attached to licences as appropriate.  
 
9.8 The model conditions cover, among other things, issues surrounding: 
 

• crime and disorder 
• public safety 
• cinemas and fire safety 
• public nuisance 
• protection of children from harm. 

 
 
9.9 Where no representations have been made, the power to impose conditions exists only 

when the Licensing Act 2003 makes them compulsory or when they reflect the operating 
schedule proposed by the applicant. The Licensing Authority acknowledges that it may 
not itself impose any conditions unless its discretion has been engaged following the 
making of relevant representations and it has been satisfied of the necessity to impose 
conditions due to the representations made.  It may then only impose such conditions as 
are necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the 
representations 

 
9.10 There are a number of mandatory conditions that are attached to licences, strengthened 

in April 2010 with the addition of conditions that govern irresponsible drinks promotions. 
A further addition is a condition that requires venues to provide water to customers upon 
request. For a full list of all the mandatory conditions refer to Appendix 4.  

 
 
10.0 Licensing Objectives 
 
10.1 Section 4 of the Act sets out the licensing objectives, which the Licensing Authority is 

under a duty to promote when carrying out its functions under the Act.  The objectives 
are as follows: 

 
- the prevention of crime and disorder; 
- public safety; 
- the prevention of public nuisance; 
- the protection of children from harm 

 
10.2 These four objectives are the only matters that may be taken into account in considering 

an application, and any licence conditions attached following the consideration of 
relevant representations must be necessary to achieve these four objectives 

 

Page 23



 

 

 
 
 

 

10.3 The Licensing Authority considers that each of the licensing objectives is of equal 
importance for the purposes of this policy. 

 
10.4 The Licensing Authority is of the view that the objective of the licensing process is to 

allow for the provision of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night refreshment in a 
way which prevents crime and disorder, public nuisance and harm to children, ensures 
public safety and is not a detriment to the amenity of residents or businesses.  This 
policy statement is therefore designed to deal with matters within the control of the 
licence holder and will focus on the impact of activities taking place on those living, 
working or otherwise engaged in the vicinity. 

 
10.5 The Licensing Authority recognises that it is ultimately for the Designated Premises 

Supervisor to decide how best to manage the premises. However, the Authority expects 
that the DPS or another personal licence holder should normally be on the premises 
when alcohol is supplied.(except where in a case of a community premises the 
mandatory licence condition in S19 of the Act has been disapplied) If they are 
absent from the premises, they will still be ultimately responsible for the actions of those 
they authorise to permit sales of alcohol. It is considered good practice that any such 
authorisations should be in writing. Where any person who does not hold a personal 
licence is authorised to sell alcohol, the DPS is encouraged to provide, or ensure that, 
the authorised person has received some training on the requirements of the Licensing 
Act, and any conditions attached to the licence for the premises concerned. It is 
recommended that a record of such training be maintained.   

 
10.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that Licensing functions are only one means of 

securing the delivery of the objectives.  Delivery must therefore involve partnership 
working with local authorities, the Police, local businesses and local people working 
together towards the common promotion of the four objectives. 

 
10.7 In particular, the Licensing Authority believes that this partnership working must involve 

the entertainment, hospitality and leisure industries.  Co-operation and partnership are 
the best means of promoting the licensing objectives. 

 
10.8 Each application will be considered on its individual merits. This policy does not seek to 

introduce ‘zones’ within the area where specific activities are concentrated. 
 
11.0. Opening Hours 
 
11.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that fixed and artificially early closing times in certain 

areas can lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance due to large concentrations of 
people leaving the premises at the same time. 

 
11.2 This policy will not be used to fix those hours during which alcohol can be sold.  In 

general, and subject to consideration by the Licensing Authority of any relevant 
representations, any licensed premises will be permitted to sell alcohol during the hours 
that they have applied for, provided that this is consistent with the licensing objectives. 

 
11.3 However as stated above, there may be premises that are known to experience disorder 

and disturbance.  Subject to representations from a responsible authority or other 
interested party a limitation on licensing hours for those premises may be appropriate. 

 
11.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that longer licensing hours can contribute to easing 

disorder and other problems that often occur at late night food premises, taxi ranks, 
private hire offices and other transport sources. 

 

Page 24



 

 

 
 
 

 

11.5 However, a limitation on licensing hours may be imposed in relation to individual 
premises if representations are received from a responsible authority or interested party 
and the premises are identified as a focus for disorder and disturbance. 

 
11.6 As stated, the Licensing Authority will deal with applications on their individual merits.  

However as far as premises in residential areas are concerned, where relevant 
representations are received, stricter controls may be imposed in respect of opening 
hours to ensure that disturbance to local residents is minimised. 

 
12.0 Protection of Children 
 
12.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the great variety of premises for which licences may 

be sought.  These will include theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, 
take-aways, community halls and schools.  Access by children to all types of premises 
will not be limited in any way unless it is considered necessary to do so in order to 
protect them from physical, moral or psychological harm.  Equally, no premises will be 
obliged to allow access by children. 

 
12.2 If relevant representations are received in relation to limiting access to children, the 

 Licensing Authority will judge each application on its own individual merits.  Examples 
 which may give rise to concern in respect of children would include premises:- 

 
• where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided 
• where there is a strong element of gambling taking place (but not, for example, the 

simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines) 
• with a known association with drug taking or dealing 
• where there have been convictions of current members of staff for serving alcohol to 

those under 18 
• with a reputation for under age drinking 

 
12.3 In the case of premises which are used for film exhibitions, conditions will be imposed 

restricting access only to those who meet the required age limit in line with any 
certificate granted by the British Board of Film Classification or, in specific cases, a 
certificate given to the film by the Licensing Authority itself. 

 
12.4 The options available for limiting access by children would include:- 
 

• a limit on the hours when children may be present 
• a limitation or exclusion when certain activities are taking place 
• the requirement to be accompanied by an adult 
• access may be limited to parts of the premises but not the whole 
• an age limitation (for under 18s) 

 
12.5 The Licensing Authority will not impose any condition which specifically requires access 

for children to be provided at any premises.  Where no restriction or limitation is imposed 
the issue of access will remain a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or 
club. 

 
12.6 Under the Act, certain “responsible authorities” must be notified of and are entitled to 

make representations about applications for premises licences or club premises 
certificates or major variations of such licences or certificates, or to ask the licensing 
authority to review a licence or certificate.  Applicants for premises licences and club 
premises certificates are required to send details of their applications to these bodies. In 
matters concerning the protection of children from harm, the Licensing Authority regards 

Page 25



 

 

 
 
 

 

the Lancashire Safeguarding Children Board as the ‘responsible authority’ within the 
terms of Section 13 (4).f of the Licensing Act. 

 
 
12.7 Where a large number of children are likely to be present on any licensed premises, for 

example a children’s show or disco, the applicant may wish to consider including in the 
operating schedule arrangements for the presence of an appropriate number of adult 
staff to ensure public safety and the protection of the children from harm. The applicant 
should also consider whether employees working at the premises for such events and 
having unsupervised contact with children should have an enhanced Criminal Records 
Bureau check. 

 
12.8 Children may also be present at an event as entertainers, and where they are not 

accompanied by a parent or guardian, the applicant may wish to consider nominating an 
adult responsible for such child performers at such performances. The applicant should 
also consider whether a nominated adult should have had an enhanced CRB check. 

 
12.9 Applicants may wish to include in their operating schedules arrangements to ensure that 

children will be restricted from viewing age-restricted films classified according to the 
recommendations of the British Board of Film Classification or the Licensing Authority 
itself.  The Act provides that it is mandatory for a condition to be included in all premises 
licences and club premises certificates authorising the exhibition of films for the 
admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with the 
recommendations given to films either by the British Board of Film Classification or by 
the licensing authority itself. 

 
12.10 The following matters will also be considered in relation to the protection of children from 
 harm: 
 

- Whether access of children to cigarette machines is restricted 
 
- Whether access of children to any gaming machines is restricted 
 
- Where appropriate, the procedures for ensuring that any customer coming onto the 

premises is over the age of 18 
 
- The steps taken to ensure that, where appropriate, all staff involved in the management 

of the premises have the capability, responsibility and training to supervise other staff 
and to ensure that the premises are operated in such  a manner as to protect children 
from harm 

 
The Licensing Authority considers preventing children from obtaining alcohol from licensed 
premises to be of great importance in protecting them from harm. Applicants must, therefore, be 
able to demonstrate that they have in place, satisfactory arrangements to prevent sales of 
alcohol to children including a recognised or appropriate proof-of-age scheme. The Licensing 
Authority would be supportive of arrangements, which include incorporating any of the 
following: 
 

• Passport. 
• Photo Card driving licence issued in the European Union 
• Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card (PASS) 
• ‘New type’ driving licences with photographs. 
• Official ID card issued by the HM Forces or by a European Union country bearing a photo 

and date of birth of holder 
 

Page 26



 

 

 
 
 

 

Staff should have received suitable training in relation to the proof of age scheme to be applied 
upon the premises and records evidencing this should be kept. 
 
 
12.11 Applicants may wish to indicate in the operating schedule how the protection of children 

from harm will be addressed.  The above items are not intended to be exhaustive, and 
the applicant should have considered all relevant aspects of the protection of children 
from harm applicable to the particular premises. 

 
 
12.12 It is the view of the Licensing Authority that children should not be exposed to 

entertainments of a sexual nature or to strong language at a too early an age. 
Conditions may be imposed, if representations are received, aimed at preventing such 
exposure either intentionally or accidentally. In some premises entertainment of an adult 
nature may be occasional or restricted to certain times of the day. In these cases, any 
restrictive conditions to protect children will apply only at these times.  When submitting 
an application, if no reference is made to the provision of adult  entertainment or 
services within an operating schedule at “Box N”, then the Authority will interpret this to 
mean that such entertainment will not be provided and a condition to this effect will be 
applied to the licence.  

 
13.0 Prevention of public nuisance 
 
13.1 The most obvious aspect of public nuisance is noise.  The primary source of noise is 

amplified music, either uncontained outdoors or emanating from premises, which do not 
have sufficient measures in place to contain the sound.  Late at night or in the early 
hours of the morning, individuals shouting in the street or groups of people talking in an 
animated fashion generate a substantial level of noise and in some cases this is 
aggravated by offensive language. 

 
13.2 As customers leave licensed premises, the sound of their conversation can disturb 

residents.  Potentially greater problems arise when customers congregate or accumulate 
outside the licensed premises.  However, it is clear that the person in control of the 
premises has a responsibility to ensure that disturbance to residents and businesses is 
kept to a minimum. 

 
13.3 In considering licence applications where relevant representations are received, the 

 Licensing Authority will consider the adequacy of measures proposed to deal with the 
 potential for nuisance and disorder having regard to all the circumstances of the 
 application. When addressing public nuisance, the applicant should identify any 
 particular issues which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the objective to 
 prevent public nuisance, taking account of the location, size and likely clientele of the 
 premises, and the type of entertainment (if any) to be provided.  Such steps as are 
 required to deal with these issues should be included within the applicant’s operating 
 schedule, and may include: 

 
• The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to prevent noise and vibration 

escaping from the premises, including music, noise from ventilation equipment and 
human voices.  Such measures may include the installation of soundproofing, air 
conditioning, noise limitation devices and keeping windows closed during specified 
hours. 

• The steps taken to ensure that all staff involved in the management of the premises 
have the capability, responsibility and training to supervise other staff and to ensure 
that the premises are operated in such  a manner as to prevent public nuisance 

Page 27



 

 

 
 
 

 

• The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to prevent disturbance by patrons 
arriving at or leaving the premises, for example warning signs at exits, and warning 
announcements within the premises, and the use of door supervisors to pass on the 
message 

• The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to prevent queuing, or if queuing is 
inevitable, to divert queues away from neighbouring premises, or otherwise manage 
and monitor the queue to prevent disturbance of obstruction, and to prevent patrons 
congregating outside the premises. 

• The implementation of a last admission time, and how the last admission time relates 
to the closing time of the premises 

• The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to take to manage queues so that 
patrons who will not gain admission before any last admission time are advised 
accordingly 

• The steps the applicant has taken to reduce queuing outside the premises and to 
minimise the length of time people have to queue at the premises 

• The steps the applicant has taken to advise patrons that they will not be admitted if 
they are causing a disturbance, and the steps taken to implement a procedure for 
banning patrons who continually leave or arrive at the premises in a manner which 
causes a public nuisance or disturbance. 

• The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons and the effect of parking 
on local residents. 

• The arrangements the applicant has made or proposes to make for security lighting 
at the premises, and the steps the applicant has taken or proposes to take to ensure 
that lighting will not cause a nuisance to residents. 

• Whether there is sufficient provision for public transport for patrons, for example the 
provision of a free phone taxi service or other arrangements with taxi companies, 
and whether information is provided to patrons about the most appropriate routes to 
the nearest transport facilities. 

• Whether taxis and private hire vehicles serving the premises or traffic flow from the 
premises are likely to disturb local residents. 

• Whether routes to and from the premises pass residential premises. 
• Whether other appropriate measures to prevent nuisance have been taken, such as 

the use of CCTV or the employment of an adequate number of licensed door 
supervisors. 

• The measures proposed to prevent the consumption or supply of illegal drugs, 
including any search and disposal procedures. 

• The procedures in place for ensuring that no customer leaves with bottles or glasses 
• If the applicant has previously held a licence within the area of the Council, the 

history of any enforcement action arising from those premises. 
• Whether the premises would result in increased refuse storage or disposal problems, 

or additional litter in the vicinity of the premises. 
• The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to take in order to ensure that 

standards of public decency are maintained in any entertainment provided at the 
premises. 

• If appropriate, whether music is played at a lower level towards the end of the 
evening in a “wind down period”. 

• The applicant’s proposals for the length of time between the last sales of alcohol, 
and the closing of the premises 

• The steps the applicant has taken to prevent noise and other public nuisance from 
occurring in any open air parts of the premises, beer gardens, smoking shelters or 
areas that are used on an ad-hoc basis by patrons with the management consent for 
smoking    

 

Page 28



 

 

 
 
 

 

 The above list is not intended to be exhaustive, and the applicant should consider all aspects of       
 the operation that may affect public nuisance. 
 
13.4     Since the introduction of the Health Act 2006 the requirement for patrons  to go outside 

a premises to smoke has caused an increase in the number of noise and anti-social 
behaviour complaints received by this and other Councils. It is therefore expected by the 
Licensing Authority that the management of licensed premises will ensure that adequate 
provision is made to supervise those patrons who leave the premises for a short time to 
smoke, having regard to the health and safety of their staff. In certain cases some form 
of regular engagement between businesses and residents can lead to better 
understanding of the needs of each party and inspire a degree of trust.  Wherever 
possible licence holders should try and ensure that smoking areas are away from doors 
that are open for access and egress. 

 
13.5 The cumulative effects of litter around premises carrying on licensable activities can 

amount to public nuisance. The Licensing Authority requires that any premises that can 
cause litter, be it from a take away food establishment or cigarette debris left by its 
customers, must remove it at regular intervals. At the end of trading, management of the 
premises should arrange for a final check of the area immediately outside the premises, 
to ensure that no litter, spilled food or cigarette debris is left. In some cases it may be 
necessary to impose conditions on licences for take away premises which require litter 
bins to be provided or for litter dropped around of the premises to be collected and 
removed at regular intervals at the licence holder’s expense including washing away to 
the gutter any spilled food.  

 
 
14.0 The prevention of crime and disorder 
 
14.1 The central concerns of licensing in relation to law and order are acts of violence and 

vandalism brought about by consumption of alcohol and the use of licensed premises as 
part of a distribution network for illegal drugs.   

 
14.2 It is not the function of licensing to impose good practice in the adoption of wider crime 

reduction measures, such as those for securing premises outside of trading hours.  It is 
also not a purpose of licensing to require that measures be put in place to enhance the 
opportunities for gathering evidence in relation to crime of a general nature.  However, 
the Licensing Authority recognises that CCTV cameras at premises have an important 
role in preventing crime and disorder.  

 
14.3 The Licensing Authority’s starting point is to seek a reduction in crime and disorder 

throughout the area, consistent with its statutory duty under section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998.  Licences may be granted if applicants can demonstrate that a 
positive reduction in crime and disorder will result, or that it will not increase, as a result 
of the application being granted. 

 
14.4 Where there are relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will generally not grant 

a licence where it is likely that the premises will be used for unlawful purposes or where 
it is considered that the use of the premises is likely to cause an increase in crime and 
disorder in the area or the premises and this cannot be prevented by the imposition of 
conditions. When addressing crime and disorder, the applicant should identify any 
particular issues which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the objective to 
prevent crime and disorder, taking account the location, size and likely clientele of the 
premises, and the type of entertainment (if any) to be provided.  Such steps as are 
required to deal with these issues should be included within the applicant’s operating 
schedule, and may include: 

Page 29



 

 

 
 
 

 

  
• Use of CCTV inside and outside the premises. The Lancashire Constabulary has 

produced suggested minimum requirements for CCTV and these are available from 
the Lancashire Constabulary  or from the Licensing Authority’s administrative staff 

• Use of metal detection or other search equipment or procedures 
• Crime and disorder risk assessment in relation to the proposed activities 
• Measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs and procedures for searching 

customers 
• Ensuring that all staff are appropriately trained 
• Ensuring that all staff involved in the management of the premises have the 

capability, responsibility and training to supervise other staff and to ensure that the 
premises are operated in such  a manner as to prevent crime and disorder   

• Employment of sufficient security staff where appropriate, controlling admission, 
monitoring capacity within the premises as a whole and in separate rooms/levels and 
patrolling the interior and exterior of the premises (any such staff must be licensed 
by the Security Industry Authority).  The Licensing Authority recognises that there is 
a greater need for security staff in some premises than in others.  For example there 
will be a greater need for security staff in a town centre nightclub than in a village 
pub. It will be for the applicant to consider the appropriate number of doorstaff 
required for the particular premises.  

• Ensuring that a register of door staff and their working times is maintained 
• Participation in Pub Watch, Best Bar None or other relevant schemes and using 

radio links/pages as a means of connecting to other licensed premises. 
• Use of plastic or polycarbonate glasses and bottles, where appropriate, or 

toughened glass. Applicants are advised that the Government believes that a risk-
based, rather than blanket, approach to requiring licensed premises to use safer 
alternatives is the best way to tackle the problem of glass-related injuries  

• Wherever possible, agreed protocols with police and other organisations and a 
commitment to co-operate and provide such evidence as the Police require. 

• Adopting the “Night Safe Initiative” and “Safer Clubbing Guide” as statements of best 
practice 

• Following the trade codes of practice, for example BBPA and Portman Group, and 
not carrying out any irresponsible drinks promotions  

• Providing a suitable environment for customers having regard to the activities going 
on in the premises, in particular appropriate levels of seating   

• Ensuring that there are sufficient transport facilities available to ensure that 
customers can leave the premises safely and swiftly. 

• Maintaining an incident log 
• The steps the applicant has taken to prevent crime and disorder issues from 

occurring in any open air parts of the premises, beer gardens, smoking shelters or 
areas that are used on an ad-hoc basis by patrons with the management consent for 
smoking, due to location, control within and management of such areas. 

    
• Glasses and glass bottles can be dangerous weapons. As such the Licensing Authority 

would encourage the use of polycarbonate glasses, in premises. Where a particular 
issue has been hi-lighted, particularly if the premises has been brought to review by a 
responsible authority, a condition to this effect may be imposed. 

 
 
• It is important that that glasses and bottles are frequently collected to ensure that         

empty containers do not accumulate in or around the licensed premises. Staff also must 
prevent the removal of bottles or glasses from the curtilage and grounds of licensed 
premises, to prevent them being used to cause harm. 

Page 30



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
It should be noted that this list is not intended to be exhaustive. It may be appropriate for the 
applicant to consider other steps.  Equally, the Licensing Authority recognises that not all the 
items in the list will be applicable to all premises. 

 
14.5 Following the receipt of relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will not 

normally allow a person to be specified as a designated premises supervisor where that 
is likely to undermine the prevention of crime and disorder by reason of that person’s 
known past conduct.  A person is likely to be considered unsuitable if he has previous 
unspent convictions for a relevant offence, notwithstanding that he may have been 
granted a personal licence. However, each case would be considered on its own merits 
in the light of representations received. 

 
15.0      The promotion of public safety 
 
15.1 The Act complements but does not seek to duplicate the statutory requirements of other 

legislation, which affect those who have responsibility for the conduct of licensed 
premises such as the Health and Safety at Work Etc. Act 1974. 

 
15.2 One of the things which the licensing system can provide is agreement in advance on a 

standard layout for furniture, location of stage, placing of linked seats etc.  so that 
licensees can be confident about their practical arrangements, provided that they stick to 
that way of doing things.  With other legislative controls, there may be no official 
inspection of the arrangements made, unless there is an investigation when something 
has gone wrong. 

 
15.3 As a consequence of the many common features of leisure businesses, such as the 

operation of door policies, competition for taxis and the interaction with people on the 
street late at night, individual premises necessarily function as part of a network of 
businesses, sharing information on crime and disorder issues which affect them all. 

 
15.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that participation in forums such as Pub Watch and 

the proper use of network radios are key to the safe operation of the majority of leisure 
businesses.  It may be appropriate for an operating schedule to include these practical 
matters. 

 
15.5 Fire safety requirements are determined principally by specific fire safety legislation.  

The overall standard of fire safety is an important consideration in determining the 
suitability of premises for licensable activities. 

 
15.6 The Licensing Authority will not use the licensing process to secure routine compliance 

with fire safety requirements, which arise from other legislation.  Nevertheless in 
circumstances where fire safety inadequacies indicate that premises pose a risk to the 
health and safety to those who enter them and where specific fire safety enforcement 
does not provide a sufficient or sufficiently rapid remedy, the Licensing Authority will take 
appropriate steps to ensure that the risk is removed including, where necessary, and 
where a review of the licence is requested, revocation of the licence. 

 
15.7 In addition the Licensing Authority will also consider and deal with the introduction of 

further hazards to public safety as part of an event and the exercise of controls over 
occupancy, so that premises can be cleared safely and efficiently, in the event of an 
emergency. 

 
15.8 Where an applicant identifies an issue with regard to public safety (including fire safety) 

which is not covered by existing legislation, the applicant should indicate in the operating 

Page 31



 

 

 
 
 

 

schedule the steps which will be taken to ensure public safety.  Depending on the 
location, size and likely clientele of the premises, and the type of entertainment (if any) 
to be provided, the following issues may be of relevance: 

 
• The maximum capacity of the premises, and the arrangements for ensuring that a 

capacity limit is not exceeded and for monitoring capacity. This applies to the 
premises as a whole and to different rooms or levels within the premises.  

• Steps taken to ensure that all staff involved in the management of the premises have 
the capability, responsibility and training to supervise other staff and to ensure that 
the premises are operated in such  a manner as to ensure the safety of the public 

• The design of the premises and in particular the capability of the structure to bear the 
likely loads to be imposed at maximum occupancy. 

• The structural condition of the premises and state of repair. 
• The condition of the electrical and gas services, and arrangements for temporary 

electrical installations. 
• The lighting, heating and ventilation systems. 
• The fire resisting and fire separation properties of the premises. 
• The means of escape from the premises. 
• The adequacy of the sanitary arrangements. 
• The use of flame retardant materials on fixtures and fittings. 
• The protection and safety of the audience, particularly at any indoor sporting event or 

boxing or wrestling entertainment. 
• The availability of qualified first aiders when the premises are open. 
• The protection and safety of performers of entertainment. 

 
The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to have carried out a risk assessment on these 
matters in producing the operating schedule.  The above list is not intended to be exhaustive, 
and the Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to have considered all relevant aspects of 
the safety and suitability of the premises which are not dealt with under other legislation, and 
which are within the control of the applicant. 
 
16.0        Live Music, Dancing and Theatre 
 
16.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that proper account should be taken of the need to 

encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of 
communities generally.  The potential for limited disturbance in neighbourhoods will be 
balanced with these wider benefits, particularly for children. 

 
16.2 In determining what conditions should be attached to licences and certificates as a 

matter of necessity for the promotion of the licensing objectives, the Licensing Authority 
will be mindful of the need to avoid measures which deter live music, dancing and 
theatre, by imposing indirect costs of a disproportionate nature. 

 
16.3 The Licensing Authority will monitor the impact of any restrictions on regulated 

entertainment in the district, particularly on live music and dancing.  If there is evidence 
that licensing requirements deter such activities, it will consider how to prevent this and, 
if necessary will review this policy, but will remain mindful of the licensing objectives. 

   
16.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that performances of live music and dancing are 

central to the development of cultural diversity and vibrant communities where artistic 
freedom of expression is valued.  Music and dancing also help to unite communities, and 
in ethnically diverse communities, new and emerging musical and dance forms can 
assist the development of a fully integrated society.   

 

Page 32



 

 

 
 
 

 

16.5 The Licensing Authority recognises that the absence of cultural provision in any area can 
itself lead to young people being diverted into anti-social activities that damage 
communities and the young people involved themselves. 

 
16.6 The Licensing Authority is mindful that the Council itself, as landowner, may seek in its 

own name premises licences for appropriate public spaces within the district.  This will 
make it easier for people to organise suitable cultural events on Council property. 

 
17.0      Transport 
 
17.1 Where any protocols agreed with the police identify a particular need to disperse people 

from town centres swiftly and safely to avoid concentrations which could lead to disorder 
and disturbance, the Licensing Authority will aim to inform those responsible for 
providing local transportation so that arrangements can be made to reduce the potential 
for problems to occur. 

 
18.0       Tourism and Employment 
 
18.1 The Licensing Authority will ensure that it receives, when appropriate, reports on the 

needs of the local tourist economy and the cultural strategy for the area to ensure that 
these are reflected in the considerations of its Committee and Sub-Committees. 

 
18.2 The Licensing Act Committee will also ensure that it is kept informed of the employment 

situation in the area and the need for new investment and employment where 
appropriate. 

 
19.0         Link between Licensing and Planning and other Regulatory Regimes 
 
19.1 The Licensing Authority is mindful that the licensing and planning regimes should be 

kept separate to avoid duplication and inefficiency.  A licensing application should not be 
a re-run of the planning application.  Where considered necessary, the Licensing Act 
Committee will report to the Planning Committee on the situation regarding licensed 
premises within the area, including the general impact of alcohol-related crime and 
disorder.  This will enable the Planning Committee to have regard to such matters when 
taking its decisions and avoid any unnecessary overlap. 

 
19.2 In general, planning permissions authorise a broad type of use of a premises, whereas 

licences are granted for a particular type of activity.  A planning permission for an 
entertainment use may cover activities that can have a wide range of different impacts in 
the locality.  The precise nature of the impacts of the specified activities proposed by a 
prospective licence holder need to be considered when an application is made for a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. 

 
19.3 An application for a premises licence or club premises certificate will normally only be 

considered where the activity to be authorised by the licence is a lawful planning use of 
the premises, as evidenced by a valid planning consent, and the hours sought do not 
exceed those authorised by such planning consent.  However, the Licensing Authority 
acknowledges that there may be circumstances where it is appropriate to deal with a 
licensing application before the planning process has been completed, and notes in 
particular the provisions in the Act in respect of provisional statements. 

 
19.4 The Licensing Authority recognises that matters such as health and safety and fire 

safety are dealt with in other legislation, and will avoid duplication with other regulatory 
regimes so far as possible.  Only conditions that are necessary for the promotion of the 

Page 33



 

 

 
 
 

 

licensing objectives will be imposed, and only following the consideration of relevant 
representations. 

 
20.0      Promotion of Racial Equality 
 
20.1 The Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 

2000, places a legal obligation on public authorities to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination, and to promote equality of opportunity and good 
relations between persons of different racial groups.   

 
20.2 The Council is required under the 1976 Act, as amended, to produce a race equality 

scheme, assess and consult on the likely impact of proposed policies on race equality, 
monitor policies for any adverse impact on the promotion of race equality, and publish 
the results of such consultations, assessments and monitoring. 

 
20.3 The Licensing Authority will monitor the impact of this policy on race equality, and feed 

the results of such monitoring into the race equality scheme.  
 
20.4  Culmulative Impact  
 

In some circumstances, the Act allows licensing authorities to introduce a ‘cumulative 
impact policy’ covering specific target areas. “Cumulative impact” in this context is the 
potential impact that a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area 
may have on the licensing objectives. Whilst this is a proper matter for a Licensing 
Authority to consider in developing its licensing policy statement, the statutory guidance, 
advises that this situation is likely to occur in town centres and city centres “where the 
number, type and density of premises selling alcohol for consumption on the premises 
are unusual and serious problems of nuisance and disorder may be arising or have 
begun to arise outside or some distance from licensed premises”. 

 
 

The night time leisure scene in Lancaster is not entirely free of disorder problems but 
relative to the small number of areas throughout the country where the situation is 
seriously out of control, it is fortunate. The authority, nevertheless, acknowledge that a 
concentration of licensed premises in a particular area can result in an increased 
number of people walking through or congregating in streets during the night with the 
potential impact of an increase in crime, anti-social behaviour, noise pollution and other 
disturbance to residents, together with an increase in littering or fouling. In such cases 
the amenity of local residents can be placed under severe pressure but this may not be 
attributable to any individual premises. 

 
 

In any consideration of the introduction of a ‘cumulative impact policy’, the Licensing 
Authority will rely on objective evidence that crime and disorder or nuisance are 
occurring at an exceptional level and that these problems would not occur, were it not for 
the licensed premises selling alcohol for consumption on the premises in the area. If this 
is established, then the extent of the area concerned will be identified. 

 
Any discussion concerning the possible introduction of such a policy will also look at the 
alternatives to such a policy, to see if they might either achieve the same objective or be 
a complement to such a policy. 

 
 

Page 34



 

 

 
 
 

 

Only if it is demonstrated with hard evidence that a ‘cumulative impact policy’ is 
necessary and that no lesser measure is likely to have the desired effect, will such a 
policy be introduced. 

 
 

This Licensing Authority, having regard to the guidance and to the evidence currently 
available, considers that there are no particular parts of the district which are causing a 
cumulative impact on any of the licensing objectives. 

 
 

However, the cumulative impact of licensed premises in a particular area may, at a 
future time, on representation from residents or businesses or a responsible authority, 
trigger the consideration of whether any additional licences or substantial variations to 
existing licences to increase such aspects as capacity or operating hours, would lead to 
an unacceptable saturation in an area. The onus will be on the objector to provide 
evidence that additional licences or the variation of existing licences will produce the 
cumulative impact claimed. 

 
If such a special policy were to be adopted, it would form part of the statement of 
licensing policy. If relevant representations were received from responsible authorities or 
interested parties concerning a new application within the area covered by the special 
saturation policy, the outcome would normally be a refusal. 

 
 

The Licensing Authority recognises, however, that such a policy could not be absolute 
and it would continue to consider each application properly on its merit. For licences that 
were unlikely to add significantly to the problems of saturation, the application would 
generally be approved. 

 
 

Where there is no cumulative impact policy, there is no presumption against the grant of 
new licences. Nevertheless, the presence of other licensed premises in the area of the 
premises for which an application has been made and the future operation of premises 
which are due to open in the surrounding area are matters which may be raised by those 
making representations and if those representations are pertinent to the licensing 
objectives, it will have a bearing on the decision making process. 

 
21.0       Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 
 
21.1 The powers of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the Licensing 

Committee, a Sub-Committee, or by an officer acting under delegated authority. 
 
21.2 Many licensing decisions will be purely administrative in nature, and where there are no 

relevant representations, the Licensing Authority takes the view that a decision should 
be delegated to officers in the interests of speed, efficiency and cost-effectiveness. 

 
21.3 Accordingly, where there are no representations for example for an application for the 

grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, the matter will be dealt with by 
officers. Applications where there are relevant representations will be dealt with by 
Members, as will any application for a review of a licence. 

 
21.4 The Licensing Authority does not intend that a Sub-Committee considering an 

application will include any Member who represents the Ward in which the premises 
which are the subject of the application are situated.  

 

Page 35



 

 

 
 
 

 

21.5 Applicants are encouraged to address the licensing objectives in their Operating 
Schedule having regard to the type of premises, the licensable activities to be provided, 
the operational procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of the local 
community. 

 
21.6 Applicants are encouraged to make themselves aware of any relevant planning and 

transportation policies, tourism and cultural strategies, local crime prevention strategies 
including the Lancaster District Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2007 – 2010, and any 
other documents setting out good practice in relation to some or all types of premises 
(for example, “Safer Clubbing”).  Applicants will be expected to have taken these into 
account, where relevant and appropriate, and to demonstrate when formulating their 
Operating Schedule that such policies and documents have been considered. 

 
21.7 Where the Act or Regulations thereunder require the submission of plans, the Licensing 

Authority will generally require these to be drawn to the scale of 1 centimetre 
representing 100 centimetres, although a different scale may be permitted by prior 
agreement for plans of open land. 

 
21.7 When determining applications the Licensing Authority will have regard to any Guidance 

issued by the DCMS.  In particular, account will be taken of the need to encourage and 
promote live music, dancing and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community 
as a whole.  If representations are made concerning the potential for limited disturbance 
in a particular neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s consideration will be balanced 
against the wider benefits to the community. 

 
21.8 The Licensing Authority supports the ‘Red and Yellow card scheme’ which the Home 

Office and DCMS (Department of Culture and Media and Sport) have promoted. This 
scheme which addresses problem premises through the review process, suggests that 
upon a first review conditions and measures should be placed upon the premises and if 
a second review is received, revocation of the licence. However each case is looked at 
on its own merits when brought before the licensing Committee.   

  
Any review of a licence will take place before the Licensing Act Committee or one of its 
sub-committees. The Licensing Authority will apply the full range of powers available to it 
when a review of a premise licence becomes necessary and whilst supporting the 
Red/yellow card scheme, will consider revocation of a licence, even in the first instance, 
if the Authority considers the crime prevention objective to be undermined.  

  
The Authority will, however, be mindful of the need to prevent the review process being 
used as an opportunity by responsible authorities and interested parties to re-run earlier 
representations without due cause. 

 
21.9 When attaching conditions following the consideration of relevant representations, the 

Licensing Authority will also be aware of the need to avoid measures which might deter 
live music, dancing or theatre by imposing indirect costs of a substantial nature.  
However, this will be balanced with the need to promote the licensing objectives. 

 
21.10 The Licensing Authority acknowledges the advice received from DCMS that the views of 

vocal minorities should not be allowed to predominate over the general interests of the 
community. 

 
21.11 The following table sets out the delegation arrangements established under Section 10 

of the Licensing Act 2003: 
 

Page 36



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Matter to be dealt with 

 
Sub Committee 

 
Officers 

Application for Personal 
Licence with relevant 
Unspent Convictions 

If a Police 
representation made 

If no Police 
representation made 

Application for premises 
Licence/club premises 
Certificate 

If a representation 
made 

If no representation 
made 

Application for 
Provisional statement 

If a representation 
made 

If no representation 
made 

Application to vary 
premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

If a representation 
made 

If no representation 
made 

Application to vary 
Designated premises 
Supervisor 

If a police objection All other cases 

Request to be removed 
as designated premises 
supervisor 

 All cases 

Application for transfer 
of premises licence 

If a police objection All other cases 

Applications for interim 
authorities 

If a police objection All other cases 

Application to review 
Premises 
Licence/club premises 
Certificate 

All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant 
frivolous vexatious etc. 
 

 All cases 

Decision to object when 
Local Authority is a 
Consultee and not the 
relevant authority 
Considering the 
Application. 

All cases  

Page 37



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
Determination of a 
Police objection to a 
Temporary event notice.  

All cases  

Determination of film 
classification 

 Head of Legal & 
Human Resources in 
consultation with the 
Chairman.    

Determination of Minor 
Variations 

 All cases 

Disspaplication of the 
S19 requirement to have 
a designated premise 
supervisor in Community 
Premise 

 All cases 

 
 
22.0 Enforcement Policy 
 
22.1 The Licensing Authority has established protocols with amongst others, the Lancashire 

Constabulary and Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service and the Council’s Environmental 
Health service on enforcement issues to ensure efficiency in the deployment of local 
authority staff and the other regulatory services who may be engaged in enforcing 
licensing law and the inspection of licensed premises.  For this purpose, a M.A.L.T (Multi 
-Agency Licensing Team) has been set up by the relevant enforcement agencies to 
ensure effective and focussed enforcement. Inspections will take place if and when they 
are judged necessary, and this should ensure that resources are more effectively 
concentrated on problem premises.  On occasions, multi-agency enforcement 
inspections will be carried out in conjunction with Home Office approved enforcement 
campaigns. The protocols will provide for the targeting of agreed problem and high-risk 
premises, but with a lighter touch being applied to those premises which are shown to be 
well managed and maintained. The Authority recognises the Hampton principles of 
inspection and enforcement, which include: 

 
• No inspection should take place without a reason , and   
• Regulators should recognise that a key element  of their activity will be to allow or 

even encourage, economic progress and only to intervene when there is a clear 
case for protection     

 
22.2 In any enforcement action taken by the Licensing Authority, the key principles of 

consistency, transparency and proportionality will be maintained. 
 
22.3 The name of a Designated Premises Supervisor will be displayed on the summary of the 

licence, which must be prominently displayed at the premises. For enforcement 
purposes, if the Designated Premises Supervisor is not present at the premises, the 
Licensing Authority considers that it is good practice for name of the personal licence 
holder or another person authorised for the sale of alcohol to be displayed in a 
prominent position on the premises to provide a point of contact for the enforcement 
agencies.  

 

Page 38



 

 

 
 
 

 

23.0 Personal Licences 
 
23.1 Much of the foregoing policy inevitably relates to premises licences and club premises 

certificates. However, the Licensing Authority will also be responsible for issuing 
personal licences authorising individuals to supply alcohol or to authorise the supply of 
alcohol, in accordance with a premises licence. 

 
23.2 Provided that an applicant fulfils the requirements of Section 120 (2) (a), (b) and (c), of 

the Act, a licence will be granted unless the applicant has a relevant conviction or a 
foreign conviction as defined in the Licensing Act 2003.  In the event of such a 
conviction, the application will be referred to the Police, and if the Police give an 
objection notice, a hearing will generally be held.  Whilst each application and objection 
will be considered on its merits, the application will normally be rejected if the Licensing 
Authority considers this necessary for the crime prevention objective.             

 
24.0 Permitted temporary activities 
 
24.1 Where a person wishes to use premises for one or more of the licensable activities for a 

period not exceeding 96 hours a premises licence is not required.  The person can 
simply serve a temporary event notice on the Licensing Authority notifying them of the 
event.  The notice must be served on the Licensing Authority and a copy served on the 
police no later than ten working days before the event is to begin (not including either 
the day the notice is received or the day of the event) However the Licensing Authority 
would encourage applicants to give as much notice as possible so that the notice can be 
given full consideration 

 
24.2 The maximum number of persons allowed on the premises at the same time during the 

temporary event is 499. 
24.3 If alcohol is to be supplied, all supplies must be carried out by or under the authority of 

the person who served the notice. 
 
24.4 Only the police may object to the staging of a temporary event and they may do so only 

on the ground that allowing the premises to be used as proposed would undermine the 
crime prevention objective. 

 
24.5 The Licensing Authority must consider an objection notice and any representations 

which the premises user may wish to make.  This is likely to be by way of a hearing 
unless all parties agree that a hearing is unnecessary.  The Licensing Authority will give 
notice of its decision and the reasons for the decision.  If the Licensing Authority upholds 
the objection it may serve a counter notice and the temporary event will not be able to be 
staged. 

 
24.6 There are statutory limitations on the number of temporary event notices which can be 

given by individuals and which can be given in relation to particular premises. 
 
24.7 Whilst it is acknowledged by the Licensing Authority that no conditions can be imposed 

in relation to permitted temporary activities, it is hoped that the organisers of such 
activities will voluntarily comply with the requirements of this policy in staging their 
events.  When considering an objection notice, the Licensing Authority will take account 
of the provisions of this document so far as they relate to the crime prevention objective. 

 
25.0      Contact Details /Advice / Guidance 
 
Applicants can obtain further details about licensing or the application process from: 
 

Page 39



 

 

 
 
 

 

 The Licensing Manager or any other officer in the Licensing Section. 
 
  Telephone:   01524 582317 
  Fax:  01524 582368 
  e-mail:   licensing@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
Licensing staff will be willing to give general advice to potential applicants. 
For specific advice on any intended application, an applicant may wish to consult a solicitor who 
has specialist knowledge of the Act. 

Page 40


	Agenda
	5 Licensing Act 2003 - Policy Review
	Consultation responsesappendix1.pdf
	LA03postconsultationsummaryappendix3.doc
	post consultationLicensing Policyappendix2 2011-2014.doc


